SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 23, 2013
10: 05 a. m

10: 05: 08 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 10:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Fai rcl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

ALSO PRESENT

Sandy Parnell, First Lady, Juneau; Rhoda Wilker, Self,
Juneau; Sharron Lobaugh, Self, Juneau; Marsha Bennett,
Menber, National Alliance of Mental 111ness, Juneau; Sam
Trivette, Self, Juneau; Barbara Thurston, Menber, Juneau
School Board, Juneau; Sue Hull, Menber, Association of
Al aska School Boards, Fairbanks; Andi Story, Menber, Juneau
School Board, Juneau; Joy Lyon, Executive Director, Juneau
Best Beginnings and Juneau Parents as Teachers, Juneau;
Peggy Brown, Executive Director, Al aska Network on Donestic
Vi ol ence and Sexual Assault, Juneau; Patrick Sidnore, Board
Menber, Association for the Education of Young Children,
Juneau; Kate Burkhart, Executive Director, Al aska Mental
Health Board; Lisa Gardner, Home Visitor, Parents as
Teachers, Juneau; Marie Marx, Self, Juneau; Panela Wtts,
Executive Director, Juneau Alliance for Mental Health,
Juneau; David D Anvore, Sel f, Juneau; Mary  Hakal a,
Coordi nate, Science, Technology, Engineering and Math,
Juneau; Kathy Hansen, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska
Fi sherman's Alliance, Juneau; Arnold Brower, Menber, Barrow
School Board, Barrow, Aurah Landau, Parent Participant,
Parents as Teachers, Juneau; Eva Kneevat, Representative,



North Slope Borough School District, Juneau; d enn
CGel brich, Superintendent, Juneau School District, Juneau;
Stan Lujan, Chairman of the Board, Association for the
Education of Young Children, Juneau; Trina Landlord,
Executive Di rector, Al aska Native Arts Foundat i on,
Anchor age; Brenda Taylor, Board Menber, Association for the
Education of Young Children, Juneau; Denise Doniello,
Executive Director, Al aska Conm ssion on Aging, Juneau; Tom
Chard, Executive Director, Al aska  Behavi or al Heal t h
Associ ation, Juneau; Carole Bookless, Self, Juneau; Joel
Mundy, Self, Juneau; Elaine Price, Southeast Conference,

Juneau; MKke Bell, Drector, UAS Mne Training Program
Juneau; Penny Vadla, Teacher, Kenai Peninsula Borough
School District, Kenai ; Danny Frazi er, Assi st ant
Superi nt endent , Di|'I'i ngham Cty School District,

Dllingham Kinberly WIlianms, Dillingham School Board,
D | lingham Jack Walsh, Superintendent, Bristol Bay School
District, Bristol Bay; Stewart MDonald, Superintendent,
Kodi ak Island Borough School District, Kodiak; Alice
Rogoff, Al aska Native Arts Foundation, Juneau; Ken Guiner,
Retired Misic Teacher, Juneau; Brian Holst, Juneau; Cory
Crossett, Juneau School District C assroom Teacher, Juneau,
Sheryl Weinberg, Executive Director, Alaska' s Educational
Resource Center (SERRC); Bonne Wl dstad, Self

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Dennis Steffy, University of Alaska, Mning and Petrol eum
Training Service, Kenai; Bill Bieber, Self, Kenai; Jody
Seitz, City Planner, City of Dllingham Debra Kirk, Kodiak
| sl and Borough School Board, Kodiak; Tina Draper, Birchwood
Cent er, Sol dot na; Joe Cannava, Di rector, Peni nsul a
Community Health Services (PCHS), Soldotna; Twyla Bentl ey,

PCHS Birchwood Center, Sol dot na; Katie \ales, PCHS
Birchwood Center, Soldotna; Fred Sturman, Soldotna; Vikki

Jo Kennedy, Self and Fish Watch, Kodiak; Eric Linscheid,

Kodi ak; Aaron Giffin, Assenbly Menber, Kodiak; Andrea
McLeod, Anchorage; Randi Shrider, Yukon Koyukuk School

District, Fairbanks; Alec MMirren, Petersburg; Carrie
Longpre, Kuspuk School Board, Aniak; Dr. Koehler, Self, Dry
Creek; Robert Conway, Victinms for Justice, Anchorage; Ron
Johnson, Self, Fairbanks; G enda Hutton, Self, Hoonah; Jan
W ent nor e, Municipality  of Skagway, Skagway; El ai ne
Fur bi sh, Skagway Mar i ne Access Comm ssi on,

Skagway; Bill Thomas, Self, Haines

SUMVARY

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



CS HB 65 (FIN)
APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS

CS HB 65 (FIN was HEARD and HELD in commttee
for further consideration.

CS HB 66 (FIN)
APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

CS HB 66 (FIN was HEARD and HELD in commttee
for further consideration.

#hb65
#hb66
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 65(FIN)

"An Act neking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for
certain prograns, capitalizing funds, and rmaki ng
reappropri ations; and providing for an effective
date."

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 66(FI N

"An Act neking appropriations for the operating and
capi tal expenses of t he state's i nt egrated
conprehensive nental health program and neaking a
reappropriation; and providing for an effective date."

JUNEAU

10: 06: 48 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough remarked that budget conversations
for the followng years would be focused on expectations
for Alaska. She stated that the previous year's |egislature
had expected a substantial surplus, but the reality
reflected a budget deficit. She pointed out that there were
reserves, but there were sonme budget challenge's in the
current year.

10: 08: 29 AM
AT EASE

10: 09: 11 AM
RECONVENED

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



10: 09: 43 AM

SANDY PARNELL, FIRST LADY, JUNEAU, testified in support of
$827,200 for the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS) for sex
trafficking troopers. She stressed that sex trafficking was
a hidden crime. She pointed out that the victinms were under
the extreme control of the sex traffickers, the victins
bond wth the traffickers, so the victinms did not self-
confess. She stressed that sex trafficking nostly occurred
underground, but pointed out that sex trafficking officers
could identify the signs of sex trafficking, that other
regular DPS officers my not notice. She felt that the
State should not |eave the responsibility to the Federal
Bureau of Investigation. She shared that the book, "Grls
Li ke Us" by Sheila Weller hel ped her better understood the
subj ect of sex trafficking.

10: 13: 30 AM

RHODA WALKER, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of behaviora
health services funding. She explained that her grandson
had extreme behavioral health issues. She showed her
brui ses that were caused by her grandson's violence. She
felt that her grandson may need to be institutionalized
wi t hout behavioral health funding to support the necessary
prograns that he needed to obtain treatnent.

10: 15: 26 AM

SHARRON LOBAUGH, SELF, JUNEAU, poke in support of
behavi oral health services funding. She shared that her son
had schi zophrenia. She stated that for the first five years
of his life, there was no psychiatrist in Juneau. She felt
that, in that tinme, consunmers were able to show the need
for a psychiatrist in Juneau. She remarked that because of
treatment and education, her son was not able to stay in
Juneau. She shared that she had worked for many years wth
the National Alliance on Mental illness. She remarked that
Juneau had approximately 300 people with schizophrenia. She
announced that her favorite novie of the year was "Silver
Linings Playbook"”, and felt that the novie adequately
reflected the personalities of those people that deal wth
mental ill ness.

10:18:17 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



MARSHA  BENNETT, VEMBER, NATI ONAL  ALLI ANCE OF MENTAL
| LLNESS, JUNEAU, voiced support for behavioral health
services funding. She explained that the National Alliance
on Mental Illness (NAM) had created the Juneau Alliance on
Mental Illness (JAM) and the Polaris House. She remarked
that JAM only had one paid enployee, and was run by nostly
vol unt eers.

10: 19: 53 AM

SAM TRI VETTE, SELF, JUNEAU, urged support of the Al aska
Medicare dinic funding, behavi or al health services
funding, and funding for the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED). He pointed out that behavioral
health had nade great strides in Alaska, and felt that
behavioral health services funding was critical. He felt
t hat behavioral health was directly connected to education.
He pointed out that there were sonme students that were at
risk, so cutting education funding would result in the
mental health issue in the communities. He wanted his
grandchildren to have the sane opportunities that he and
his son had in school.

10: 23: 03 AM

BARBARA THURSTON, MEMBER, JUNEAU SCHOOL BOARD, JUNEAU
testified in support of DEED funding. She remarked that the
Juneau School Board faced recent cuts that resulted in the
loss of 100 jobs. She commended the governor for his
efforts and focus on the educational priorities including
the Alaska Performance Scholarship and the focus on
increasing the graduation rate. She pointed out that
students had additional pressure, so proper funding to
provide students with the focus of teachers in order to
succeed was inperative. She remarked that there was a
recent increase in test scores, so reducing the budget was
not necessary. She remarked that the budget cuts and
enpl oyee cuts were nostly focused on non-educators, and she
feared that there would be a reduction in teachers if the
fundi ng was not avail abl e.

10: 26: 57 AM

SUE HULL, MEMBER, ASSOCIATION OF ALASKA SCHOOL BOARDS
FAI RBANKS, voiced support for DEED fundi ng. She thanked the
committee and the State for the education funding. She was
grateful that the reserves were available for the State of

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



Al aska. She renmarked that there were challenges in
preparing children for the future. She remarked that the
state standards for the new comon core gave the
educational system new challenges that required proper
f undi ng.

10: 31: 34 AM

ANDI STORY, MEMBER, JUNEAU SCHOOL BOARD, JUNEAU, testified
in support of DEED funding. She remarked that the bil
reflected fourteen |ost educational positions in Juneau.
She pointed out that parents and community nenbers were
upset about these services being cut. She announced that
student achievenent was high across the state. She
encouraged the commttee to support and increase of funding
for public schools.

10: 34: 10 AM

JOY LYON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, JUNEAU BEST BEG NNI NGS AND
JUNEAU PARENTS AS TEACHERS, JUNEAU, stressed the inportance
of funding for Best Beginnings and Parents as Teachers. She
felt that the two prograns were the w sest investnments in
the state. She renarked that Best Beginnings and Parents as
Teachers engaged parents in their child s education for the
first 1000 days of life. She shared that the prograns woul d
set the foundation for their social, physical, nental, and
educational health. She felt that 90 percent kindergarten
readi ness was essential to the success of the young
children. She pointed out that Best Beginnings and Parents
as Teachers showed 90 percent literacy rate at the
ki ndergarten | evel

10: 37: 29 AM

PEGGY BROWN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA NETWORK ON DQVESTI C
VI OLENCE AND SEXUAL ASSAULT, JUNEAU, spoke in support of
behavi oral health services funding. She renmarked that the
$250, 000 covered basic costs related to donestic violence
victim services. She encouraged the conmittee to include
that anount in the final bill.

10: 38: 51 AM

PATRI CK  SI DMORE, BOARD MEMBER, ASSOCI ATION  FOR THE
EDUCATI ON OF YOUNG CHI LDREN, JUNEAU, testified in support
of early chil dhood education and increased DEED funding. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



stressed that investing in the education of young children
was a proper and necessary investnent. He also encouraged
funding for Parents as Teachers.

10: 40: 36 AM

KATE BURKHART, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH
BOARD, testified in support of behavioral health services
funding, the Conplex Behavior Collaborative, and Centers
for Independent Living. She thanked the commttee for the
work related to those prograns. She urged support for
funding for the Al coholic Beverage Control (ABC) Board. She
remar ked that the proposed anobunt in the governor's budget
for the ABC Board was necessary to perform its I|icensing
functions.

10: 43: 13 AM

LI SA GARDNER, HOVE VI SITOR, PARENTS AS TEACHERS, JUNEAU,
testified in support of Parents as Teachers. She expl ai ned
that her job was spent teaching and discussing with the
parents about their child s education. She remarked that
she was often the only person that the parent had to talk
to about the stress that parents face. She pointed out that
she was commtted to the famlies for three years and asked
the conmttee to support the three year commtnent to the
parents and chil dren.

10: 45: 25 AM

MARI E MARX, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in support of DEED
budget. She pointed out that she believed in fiscal
responsi bility, but encouraged an increase in the BSA She
pointed out that there were any great successes in the
Juneau School District. Se remarked that Juneau was |ikely
to face mmjor educational problenms because of budget cuts.
She reiterated that the current funding |evel undercuts
prograns that were necessary to students' successes. She
shared that she would hold the school board accountable for
spendi ng.

10: 48: 53 AM

PAVELA WATTS, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, JUNEAU ALLI ANCE FOR
MENTAL HEALTH, JUNEAU, testified in support of behaviora

health services funding. She remarked that the funding was
necessary for vari ous types of behavi or al heal th

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



conditions. She shared that JAM provided many different
i nportant services, including |iving accommobdations for 60
people with severe nental health conditions. She shared
that JAM was able to encourage patients to becone
contributing nenbers of the comunities, in order to
pr event i ndi vi dual s from becom ng i ncarcerated or
institutionalized.

10: 51: 00 AM

DAVID D AMORE, SELF, JUNEAU, urged support for an increase
in funding for education. He shared that there was a new
el enentary math program that enhanced problem solving He
felt that problem solving was essential to the success of
children and Al askans. He shared a story about how his son
was able to wuse fundanental elements of calculus to
determne and estimate of jelly beans in a jar.

10: 53: 12 AM

MARY HAKALA, COORDI NATE, SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY, ENGJ NEERI NG
AND MATH, JUNEAU, testified in support of DEED funding,

specifically related to science, technology, engineering,

and math education opportunities in Al aska. She shared that

the First Robotics program was extrenely hel pful for young
children in order to engage students in team based problem
solving. She explained that Al aska had the highest per

capita participation in the program in the country. She
expl ai ned that 45 percent of the nenbership in the program
wer e femal e, conpar ed to t he 35 per cent femal e
participation rate nationw de.

10: 57: 40 AM

KATHY  HANSEN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, SOQUTHEAST  ALASKA
FI SHERVMAN S ALLI ANCE, JUNEAU, spoke in support of the
funding for Departnent of Fish and Gane (DFG budget,
specifically related to the managenent of fisheries. She
remar ked that Sout heast Al aska was facing issues related to
territorial jurisdiction relationships with the federal
government. She felt that funding for subsistence fisheries
was essential to the econony of Al aska.

10: 59: 06 AM

ARNCLD BROVWER, MEMBER, BARROW SCHOOL BOARD, BARROW urged
support of sex trafficking officer funding in the DPS

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



budget. He also voiced support of increased funding for
DEED. He specifically supported funding for early chil dhood
education and pre-K prograns. He encouraged the commttee
to fight for the <current conmttee substitute funding

level. He also urged support for the Digital Learning
Initiative. The initiative provided his constituents to
obtain an equal education with all students across the

state. He stressed that only 8.3 percent of Native students
qualified for the Al aska Performance Schol arshi ps.

11: 02: 59 AM

Senator O son requested that M. Brower provide his witten
testinmony to the commtt ee.

11: 03: 40 AM

AURAH LANDAU, PARENT PARTI ClI PANT, PARENTS AS TEACHERS,
JUNEAU, encouraged support for Parents as Teachers. She
shared that her son did not sleep as a young child, and she
and her husband were constantly exhausted. She renarked
that Parents as Teachers provided healthy strategies to
deal with her son. She pointed out that the Parents as
Teachers had provided information about and tools to help
her child sl eep.

11: 08:42 AM

EVA KNEEVAT, REPRESENTATIVE, NORTH SLOPE BOROUGH SCHOOL
DI STRICT, JUNEAU, encouraged funding for early childhood
education and pre-K education funding. She shared that she
had a six year old grandson who could spell his |ast nane,
and felt that the education funding was directly related to
hi s educational success. She also testified in support of
the Digital Learning Initiative.

11: 09: 13 AM

GLENN GELBRI CH, SUPERI NTENDENT, JUNEAU SCHOCL DI STRICT,
JUNEAU, spoke in support of DEED funding. He explained that
three years prior, there was a local effort to increase the
graduation requirenent. He felt that college preparation
and education was necessary to the success of high school
graduates. He stressed that the Juneau School District was
not waiting for requirenents, but rather anticipating the
needs of the students. He understood the tine and energy
that was required when drafting a budget, but felt that

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



education funding should be a necessary focus. He expl ai ned
that the prior year had an elinmnation of 6 percent of the
teaching positions in Juneau, and admnistrative cuts were
over 17 percent. He stated that the Juneau School District
was trying to prioritize the investnment at the classroom
|l evel. He stressed that education and graduation rates were
high. He felt that these were indicators of student and
budget ary success.

11:15:19 AM

STAN LUJAN, CHAIRVAN OF THE BQOARD, ASSOCI ATION FOR THE
EDUCATI ON OF YOUNG CHI LDREN, JUNEAU, testified in support
of funding for DEED, specifically Best Beginnings and
Parents as Teachers. He felt that Best Beginnings was a
good investnent for young children in order to decrease the
incarceration rate later in life. He remarked that the
literacy rate in prison was 70 percent at a third grade
reading level. He pointed out that in order to turn the
tide on dropout prevention, it was inportant to encourage
early chil dhood education. He stressed that healthy reading
skills and healthy parenting skills was essential to the
success of individuals later in life. He felt that Best
Begi nni ngs was essential to the early intervention of young
chi | dren.

11:19: 02 AM

TRINA LANDLORD, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA NATIVE ARTS
FOUNDATI ON, ANCHORAGE, testified in support of the arts
foundation. She explained that the Alaska Native Arts
Foundation served as a platform for artists to obtain
entrepreneurship training and other forms of support of art
and artists.

11: 21: 23 AM

BRENDA TAYLOR, BQOARD MEMBER, ASSCCI ATION FOR THE EDUCATI ON
OF YOUNG CHI LDREN, JUNEAU, testified in support of DEED
funding. She stressed that it was inpossible to determ ne
the results of recent DEED cuts. She specifically urged
support of Parents as Teachers funding. She felt that the
budget reductions were disheartening. She shared that the
recent personnel cuts were counselors and nursing. She
remarked that there were only two counselors remaining in
the Juneau Douglas H gh School. She remarked that the
Al aska Performance Scholarship required four vyears of

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



Soci al Studies, but Juneau Douglas H gh School only offered
social studies courses for three years. She relayed that
foreign |language and math courses had simlar course
of fering issues.

11: 27: 19 AM

DENI SE DONI ELLO, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA COW SSI ON ON
AG NG JUNEAU, testified in support of behavioral health
services funding, specifically related to prograns that
directly affect aging Al askans. She thanked the conmttee
for their support of the Health and Human Services
Community Services Block G ants.

11: 30: 09 AM

TOM CHARD, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA BEHAVI ORAL HEALTH
ASSCCI ATI ON, JUNEAU, urged support and thanked the
conmmttee for Dbehavioral health services funding. He
remarked that the Alaska Behavioral Health Association
tried to determne the proper ways to utilize funding. He
shared that the governor's proposed operating budget did
not include many services for Departnment of Health and
Soci al Services (DHSS), and then the House Finance
Conmittee proposed an $8.4 nillion budget reduction for
behavi oral health services funding. He remarked that many
peopl e were shocked at that proposed cut. He pointed out
that nmany people expressed outrage regarding that proposed
cut .

11: 33: 44 AM

CAROLE BOOKLESS, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in support of DEED
increased funding. She remarked that the Departnent of
Corrections (DOC) budget and DEED budget had the sane |evel
of funding. She shared that she was a special education
teacher, and those students could succeed given the proper
resources. She did not understand why |legislators felt that
school s wer e not succeedi ng. She under st ood t hat
| egislators were trying to nmake the Ilives of students
better. She remarked that students were given greater
pressure in the present day, than what they were 40 years
prior. She stressed t hat educat ors and school
adm nistrators were doing their best with the funding they
were given.

11: 38: 01 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



Co-Chair Kelly explained that the budget may have reflected
t he agency funding, and not direct school grants.

11: 38: 32 AM
AT EASE

11:51: 02 AM
RECONVENED

11:51: 29 AM

JOEL MUNDY, SELF, JUNEAU, expressed support for continued
and expanded funding for therapeutic court progranms. He
rel ayed his personal experience participating in the Juneau

t herapeutic court program and shared that he would still in
in jail if were not for the program the program had
enabled him to keep his job, stay in school, and work

towards two degrees. Additionally, the program had allowed
himto be there for his famly and son. He stressed that
the program had saved his life; he shared details related
to the death of his ex-fiancé. He enphasized the inportance
of addiction treatnent prograns. He accentuated that jail
was not the answer for non-violent drug offenses. He urged
t he support and expansi on of therapeutic prograns.

ELAINE PRI CE, SOUTHEAST CONFERENCE, JUNEAU, testified in
support of funding for the University of Al aska Southeast
(UAS) mine training program that was currently offered to
20 schools throughout the state. She provided details
related to the program that had put Al askan students to
work in mning careers. She stated that the students and
the mning industry were both engaged. She discussed
various donations from the Geens Creek, Kensi ngt on

Ni bl ack, Bokan Mountain, and other mnes. She pointed to
the programis success and thanked the commttee for
mai ntaining the increnent in the budget. She appreciated
the commttee's attention throughout the current public
testi nony process.

11:55: 47 AM

M KE BELL, DI RECTOR, UAS M NE TRAI NING PROGRAM JUNEAU
spoke in favor of funding for the UAS mne training
program He encouraged the committee's continued support
for the program He expected that the mning comunity
woul d provide 3,000 to 4,000 jobs over the next five years.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



He di scussed the inportance of hiring Al askans to fill the
positions. He stressed that the training program was a
great investnent that would provide a significant financial
return. He urged support for the Al aska Learning Network
that was critical to the distance |earning prograns.

11:58: 56 AM

DENNI S STEFFY, UN VERSITY OF ALASKA, M NING AND PETROLEUM
TRAINING SERVICE, KENAI (via teleconference), spoke in
support of funding the University of Al aska' s budget and
its Strategic Direction process that returned the enphasis
of the wuniversity to the student. He spoke to the
i nportance of the delivery of quality education services.
He supported a Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent increnment for the purchase of nobile mne
machi ne sinulators. He referenced a significant nunber of
jobs that opened in the mning industry on an annual basis.
He observed that there was a lack in training for Al askans
who <could be well suited for the mning jobs. The
i npl enentation of the machine sinulators would enable the
state to provide training. and funding for the University

of Alaska's certification progranms for the oil and gas
mning industry. He stated that the wuniversity provided
certification training to approximately 3,000 oil, gas, and

m ning enpl oyees. He conmmunicated that budget cuts would
reduce the training opportunity by approxi mtely 900 people
per year; he asked for support of a wuniversity funding
request that would allow the program to continue reaching
t he current nunber of trainees.

12: 02: 53 PM

BILL BIEBER, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), spoke in
support of funding for the University of Alaska and adult
education prograns. He pointed out that many students in
Sout hwest Al aska did not have access to vocational prograns
in high school. He believed the |lack of access would place
a burden on secondary education prograns. He asked the
conmmittee to fund adult education. He noted that students
were Al aska's future workforce.

12: 04: 55 PM

PENNY  VADLA, TEACHER, KENAI PENI NSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL
DI STRI CT, KENAI, spoke in favor of a Base Student
Al l ocation increase and forward funding for education. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



believed children were the state's first priority. She
pointed to the inportance of providing funding to sustain
and enhance existing education prograns. She stressed that
a three-year funding plan was essential for the state's
school districts and the retention of quality teachers. She
mentioned career prograns related to construction, nedical,
and other. She discussed different educational avenues
based on students' learning styles. She was in favor of
early education. She pointed to rising costs related to
energy. She asked the commttee to consider funding bond
rei nbursenent. She enphasized that children were "our
hope.”" She stated that funding wuld help increase
graduation rates and ot her.

12:10: 18 PM

JODY SEITZ, CI TY  PLANNER, CITY OF DILLINGHAM (via
t el econference), expressed support of funding for famlies,
education, public safety, and transportation. She stressed
that the itens were essential to the state's residents and
muni ci palities. She asked the comittee to fund the
behavi oral health grants and the tobacco prevention program
at t he governor's request ed | evel . She expressed
appreciation for an Energency Medical Services grant
i ncrenment .

12:12: 37 PM

DANNY FRAZI ER, ASSI STANT SUPERI NTENDENT, DI LLINGHAM CITY
SCHOCOL DI STRICT, DILLINGHAM testified in support education
fundi ng. He was proud of work done by teachers and staff in
the district. He asked for continued funding of Pre-K
prograns; the prograns prepared children for Kindergarten

He enphasi zed the inportance of keeping students engaged in
education projects; students who were not engaged had | ess
notivation to attend school. He encouraged funding that
woul d provide students with access to courses that would
make themeligible for the Al aska Perfornmance Schol arshi p.

Co-Chair Kelly expressed appreciation for the testifiers.

12:14: 52 PM

KI MBERLY W LLIAVMS, DILLINGHAM SCHOCOL BQARD, DI LLI NGHAM
testified in support of funding for education and the
DI lingham School District's Oca Project. She noted that
the school district served Al askan salnon to students. The

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



Oca project was a collaboration between the schoo
district, the wuniversity, and Nunanmta Aulukestai. She
shared that several killer whales had been stuck and died
on a local river; the goal of the project was to articul ate
the whales. She provided additional detail related to the
project and stated that the project was a way of engaging
students early on. She stressed the inportance of funding.
She discussed the high cost of fuel in D llingham and
shared that it had a huge effect on the district's budget.

12: 19: 40 PM

Co-Chair Kelly noted that Senator O son had to | eave for an
Arctic Policy Comm ssion neeting. He noted Senator O son's
intent to return to the neeting.

12: 20: 03 PM

JACK WALSH, SUPERI NTENDENT, BRI STOL BAY SCHOOL DI STRICT
BRI STOL BAY, expressed support for education funding and
the University of Alaska. He stated that funding for
education provided vital training for teachers and
students. He nentioned the inportance of teacher nentoring
and coaching projects. He spoke in favor of funding for
mental health services and school safety. He was concerned
that there was a disparity in the way the school districts
were funded and discussed an unfunded school maintenance
project in his school district. He pointed out that the
rural schools needed help. He appreciated the conmittee's
tinme.

12:23: 51 PM

DEBRA Kl RK, KODI AK | SLAND BOROUGH SCHOOL BOARD, KODI AK (via
tel econference), expressed support for adequate funding for
preschools and education. She detailed that new standards
woul d require nore from students; she stressed that it was
not a tinme to be decreasing funding. She stated that
adequate funding for the state's students would greatly
i ncrease students' ability to be conpetitive in college.
She asked for support for district's outstanding nusic and
di stance learning program for its rural villages. She
shared the benefit of extracurricular activities and that a
good education would reduce donestic violence and would
keep children out of jail. She stated that children were
taught norals in school and that they |earned froman early
age how to treat each other

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



12:27:43 PM

STEWART MCDONALD, SUPERI NTENDENT, KODI AK | SLAND BOROUGH
SCHOOL DI STRICT, KODI AK, testified in support of funding
for education. He appreciated the public service provided
by the commttee nenbers. He stated that the schoo

district and the state shared the common goal of raising
and prepari ng gl obal Iy conpetitive gr aduat es whi | e
devel oping a sustainable instructional nodel. He spoke
about the establishnment of non-negotiable goals in student
performance and instruction. He nentioned the district's
new staff-evaluation system He pointed out the career and
technology focus since 1963, when the vocational high
school was first designed. He noted that certificates for
underwat er robotics and conputer design were available at
t he vocational high school

12: 35: 03 PM

ALI CE ROGOFF, ALASKA NATIVE ARTS FOUNDATION, JUNEAU,
appreciated the tine of the conmttee. She stated that the
foundati on served as an incubator for the state's snall est
busi ness people. Her foundation represented and supported
ivory cutters and basket weavers and oil painters in
becoming their own mcro economes. She stated that the
foundation provided tools for artists to be their own
busi ness people. She noted that quantification of returns
on investnent was inportant to menbers of the |egislature.
She stated the inpact of higher priced utilities on snal
busi nesses.

12: 39: 42 PM

TI NA DRAPER, Bl RCHWOOD CENTER, SOLDOTNA (via
tel econference), thanked the <conmttee for reinstating
funds for behavioral health services. She stated that
behavi oral health organizations such as Birchwod Center
hel ped support her decision to go back to school.

12:40: 38 PM

JOE CANNAVA, DI RECTOR, PENI NSULA COVMUNI TY HEALTH SERVI CES
(PCHS), SOLDOINA (via teleconference), testified that his
organi zati on enpl oyed approxi mately 220 different enployees
in the central peninsula and worked with over 700 clients
in the behavioral health departnent. He appreciated the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



reinstatenent of the $8.3 mllion for behavioral health
services. He noted that 220 different enployees would keep
their jobs on the Kenai Peninsula because of the deci sion.

12: 42: 26 PM

TWYLA  BENTLEY, PCHS BI RCHWOOD CENTER, SOLDOTNA  (via
tel econference), testified that she once suffered from
Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder, anxiety and panic attacks
She received help from the Birchwood Center that enabled
her to attend the Kenai Peninsula College. She benefitted
greatly from the services offered at PCHS Birchwood Center
and appreciated the subcommittee's decision to fund
behavi oral health services in Al aska.

12: 43: 36 PM

KATIE  WALES, PCHS Bl RCHWOOD  CENTER, SOLDOTNA  (via
tel econference), echoed the testinonies of her colleagues.
She expl ained that the center provided nedical, dental and
behavioral health services to famlies regardless of a
person's ability to pay for services. Her center served
many different communities on the Kenai Peninsula. She
appreci ated the Senate Finance Subcommittee for reinstating
the funding for behavioral health services. She added that
the funding of services was vital to the health and
wel | bei ng of the comunity.

12:45: 53 PM

FRED STURMAN, SOLDOTNA (via teleconference), testified in
favor of cutting the budget. He opined that a delay in oil
production was inevitable and wthout decreased budget
spendi ng, the state mght face large deficits. He
recommended reducing the Division of Mtor Vehicle (DW)
budget by 100 percent. He spoke in favor of the changes in
oil taxation proposed by the conmttee, but stressed that a
delay in revenue was expected.

12:48: 22 PM

VI KKI JO KENNEDY, SELF AND FISH WATCH, KODI AK  (via
t el econf erence), expressed di sappoi nt nent Wi th t he
Depar t ment of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs (DWA)
subcomittee recomendation for the reinstatement of $3
mllion for the Al aska Aerospace Corporation. She nentioned
that the reason that "field one" was closed at Ft. Geeley

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



was because 8 silos flooded and froze in 2009. She added
that the Strategic Defense Initiative (SDI) was 30 years
ol d. She believed that the spending was excessive.

12: 52: 08 PM

ERIC LINSCHEID, KODIAK (via teleconference), reconmended
increases in the operating budget. He stated three
recomendations related to the control of the budget. He
advocated for Best Beginnings funding. He spoke in favor of
funding for extracurricular sports and cited the benefits
to students. He pointed out the benefits of a rich
selection of cour ses. He discussed the need for
prof essional training such as health occupations, nedica
term nology and advanced anatony and physiology for
uni versity students.

12:55: 38 PM

AARON GRI FFI N, ASSEMBLY MEMBER, KODI AK (via
tel econference), testified in favor of funding for K-12
educati on. He nmentioned his district's $1.6 nmillion
deficit. He pointed out various prograns that led to

increased graduation rates for Al askan students. He
mentioned inflation and the BSA He stated that the BSA
formula was skewed by the lack of inflation related

increases. He added that wvarious supplenental budgets
further skewed the cost estimate for Al askan education. He
conpar ed education funding in Maryl and and Al aska.

1: 00: 15 PM

ANDREA MCLEOD, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), discussed
the $11 billion wunfunded liability. She spoke about
negotiations wth the union. She recalled Governor
Parnell's salary and those of his Chief-of-Staff. She
nmenti oned various staff salary increases and stated that
the total cost of the positions was greater than $500
t housand per year. She added that the supporting docunents
for the salary increase decisions were unavail able when
requested. She asked the legislature to review the salaries
and their |lack of contractual agreenent.

1: 04: 57 PM

RANDI SHRI DER, YUKON KOYUKUK SCHOOL DI STRICT, FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), testified in favor of increases in

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



educat i on f undi ng particularly for early chi | dhood
educati on.

1: 06: 08 PM

ALEC MCMURREN, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), testified
in favor of restoration of $400 thousand for the Southeast
Salnon Stock ldentification Program He appreciated the
rei nstatenent of the $165 thousand for the Southeast Sal non
Stream Aerial Surveys

1: 06: 51 PM

KEN GUI NER, RETIRED MJSIC TEACHER, JUNEAU, testified in
support of education and funding for nusic programs. He
advocated for increases in funding for Alaskan school
districts. He spoke about the increases in prices for
materials required for educat i on, i ncluding nusi cal
instrunments. He spoke about the benefits of activities in
the school setting. He shared a newspaper picture depicting
t he power of educati on.

Co- Chai r Kel l'y asked about hi s preferred nmusi cal
i nstrunent.

M. Guiner replied that he played the trunpet. He nentioned
a spring-time nusic festival that occurred in Juneau and
represented much of Al aska's tal ented nusici ans.

1:10: 29 PM

BRI AN HOLST, JUNEAU, quoted "talent will be the new oil of
the 21st century.” He directed the Juneau Economc
Devel opnent Counci | . He worked as co-chair of the Juneau
School District budget commttee. He stated that he had
four <children attending school in the Juneau Schoo

District and was a Juneau Douglas H gh School graduate. He
stated that the conmmttee recommended budget reductions of
$1.7 mllion for 2014. He advocated for solving the
education problem He stated that business peopled polled
in the region pointed out the quality of l|ocal high schools
as a net barrier to doing business in Alaska. He noted that
the Al aska Legislative Task Force on Hi gher Education and
Career Readiness stated that it "firmy believes that the
education level of out citizenry is inextricably tied to
Al aska's econom ¢ devel opnent . "

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



1:13: 57 PM

Co-Chair Kelly stated that he received information from
DWA that the claim about mssile flooding in Ft. Geely
was fal se.

1:14: 56 PM

CARRI E LONGPRE, KUSPUK SCHOOL BOARD, ANI AK (via
tel econference), testified as a school board nenber and as
a grandnother. She discussed the standardized test score
i nprovenents. She spoke about devel opnent of the school
progranms. She discussed the strategic plan to help direct
efforts in the comunity. She pointed out the |earning
opportunities that were afforded with the funding. She
hi ghli ghted details about her comunity that did not have
the funding to hire a |obbyist. She was inforned that in
order to obtain program funding and get on the CIP list, a
district required a |obbyist. She stated that her district
requi red additional support and she added that deficits
were debilitating to the very small school district. She
spoke in favor of funding for Best Beginnings. She was
informed that resources were available for the needs of
educat i onal fundi ng.

1:21:15 PM

CORY CROSSETT, JUNEAU SCHOOL DI STRICT CLASSROOM TEACHER,
JUNEAU, informed the committee that he taught fourth, fifth
and sixth grades. He stated that the intangible quality of
the education investnent mght make increased operating
budget expenditures. Every dollar spent on education led to
future savings in social services. Teaching allowed himto
provide options that could break the cycles of poverty. He
stated that funding for the Digital Learning Initiative
mght lead to the expectation that the state would provide
updated conputers for students at regular intervals. He
spoke to the benefit of tying the BSA to inflation. He
opined that the school district admnistrators would
utilize state funding appropriately.

SHERYL WEI NBERG, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA' S EDUCATI ONAL
RESOURCE CENTER (SERRC), testified in support of funding
for the Alaska Transition CQutcone Project or Rural
Transitions. She pointed out that 13 percent of Al askan
students experienced disabilities. She spoke about the
chal | enges experienced by the students wth disabilities

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 20 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



and the benefits of the prograns for neaningful transition
pl anni ng. The progranms served students ages 16 and ol der
who were involved in special education. She noted that the
Al aska Transition Qutcome Project provided professional
devel opnment for teachers since 2002.

1: 30: 26 PM

DR. KCEHLER, SELF, DRY CREEK (via teleconference),
testified in support of $3.4 mllion for energency nedica
services grants to regions. She highlighted the state's
needs for public safety. She noted that 80 percent of 911
calls that were not police related were for energency
medi cal services. She pointed out that the energency
nedi cal services were subsidized by volunteers. She stated
that both Medicaid and Medicare reinbursed far below the
actual cost and did not pay for rescue, extraction from a
vehicle or 24/7 readiness. She noted that the direct cost
of energency nedical services did not equal the full cost.
She added that the energency nedical services work force
was free including the field Energency Medical Technicians,
the paranmedics and the physicians. Funding for the grants
woul d support the Interior Region, North Slope, Norton
Sound, Anchorage and sout heast Al aska.

1:35: 25 PM

ROBERT  CONWAY, VICTIMS FOR JUSTI CE, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of the increnment for
Victinms for Justice. He shared a personal story about how
Victimse for Justice had helped him deal with his
girlfriend s disappearance. He related that the Victins for
Justice had assisted himfor over three years and that they
had never mssed a court date or failed to inform him of
any changes in the schedule of events during that time. He
stated that Victins for Justice was the only organization
set up for the survivors of a homcide of a |oved one; they
also assisted people who were victinms of aggravated
assault, robbery, arson, human trafficking, drunk driving,
and kidnapping. He stated that Victinms for Justice worked
with about 200 to 300 people per year. He concluded that
about $12 mllion went into victim assistance progranms in
the state each year, 99 percent of which went to
organi zations that served victins of donestic violence,
sexual assault, and child abuse; he stated that these were
all worthy prograns, but that the victins of other crines
needed assi stance too.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 21 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



1: 37: 31 PM

BONNE WOLDSTAD, SELF, spoke in support of funding for
schol arship opportunities for GED recipients. She shared
that she was not asking for "10 percent,” but was sinply
asking for "10 opportunities.” She explained that the
recipients of the scholarships could be selected from the
annual top scores that were accunulated through the
Department of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnent. She offered
that conpleting a high school diplom or GED and pursuing a
post secondary degree were keys to economc prosperity and
expanded socioecononmi c opportunities. She concluded that
rather than encouraging students to drop out, t he
educational opportunities would give hope and encouragenent
for reentry into postsecondary educati on.

1:39:12 PM

RON JOHNSON, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference), spoke in
support of adopting a "level dollar"” pay down plan for the
unfunded liability in the state's retirenment systens, or
for adopting the Al aska Managenent Retirenent (ARM) Board's
resolution for a three-year cash infusion in order to dea

with the unfunded liability. He related that the current
plan to pay down the unfunded liability was a "level

percent” pay down nethod, which caused the ampunt to grow
each year; furthernore, this nmethod would result in the
anount being paid by the state to approxinately double in
ten years. He pointed out that the "level percent"” paynent
met hod was counterintuitive to the plan to reduce the state
operating budget because of falling oil revenues. He I|iked
the prior year's recomendation of the Al aska Mnagenent
Retirenment (ARM Board for adopting a "level dollar" pay
down nethod; this nethod would be like a "regular house
nortgage” and would allow the state to free up nore funding
in subsequent years. He discussed Scott Goldsmith's
presentation in a prior joint Senate and House Finance
Commttee neeting and reiterated that he wanted a nore
| evel pay down plan instead of the "ballooning" nortgage
the state was currently under. He offered that the assuned
return on investnment was critical in determning the actual

unfunded Iliability and stated that an 8 percent return,
whi ch was the current assunption, was not realistic.

1: 41: 50 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 22 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



GLENDA HUTTON, SELF, HOONAH (via teleconference), spoke in
support of funding for the Inagination Library and the
Parents as Teachers program She discussed the high cost of
heating oil and food in Rural Al aska and relayed that the
high cost of living in these regions did not |eave nuch
money for buying books. She shared that reading to children
made it possible for a child to learn how to read for
t hensel ves and encouraged funding the Imagination Library
in order to allow Rural Alaska's children to have access to
books. She supported the Parents as Teachers program and
shared that Hoonah Elenentary School had nade adequate
progress on the annual statew de assessnent test for over
ten years as a result of its Parents as Teachers program

1:43: 42 PM

JAN WRENTMORE, MUNI Cl PALITY OF SKAGMY, SKAGMY (via
tel econference), spoke in support of the restoration of
funding for the Alaska Marine H ghway System (AVHS). She
related that AVHS had proposed cuts that were targeted for
a service level reduction; furthernore, the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT) had indicated
that the service |evel reductions could take effect as soon
as "this" sumrer's schedule, which had already been
publ i shed. She poi nt ed out t hat Skagway  was an
"entrepreneurial™ comunity that relied on predictability
and schedul i ng. She of fered t hat AVHS  was t he
infrastructure that supported economc developnent in
Coastal Al aska. She opined that the marine highway was how
Coastal Al aska noved goods, services, and people and that
Lynn Canal provided sonme of the highest volunes of users in
AVHS. She opined that the revenues earned in Lynn Canal
hel ped offset the |losses on less profitable routes. She
shared that the proposed budget cuts and reduced service
could "bottleneck™ traffic in Lynn Canal and would result
in significant financial |osses. She pointed out that there
was strong public support for marine operations in the
Interior and South-Central Alaska. She discussed a period
of flooding the prior spring when parts of the Al aska
H ghway and the Klondike H ghway had closed; during this
time, AVHS was the only way in and out of areas of the
state. She concluded that the marine highway had been
increasing its ridership as a result of inproved scheduling
practices, but that the proposed cuts would affect the
progress that had been made. She urged the conmttee to
support the econom c devel opnent of coastal conmunities and
restore funding for AVHS operations.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 23 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



1:46: 48 PM

ELAI NE FURBI SH, SKAGNAY MARI NE  ACCESS COW SSI ON
SKAGWAY (via tel econference), spoke in support of restoring
funding to the Al aska Marine H ghway System (AVHS). She
related that AVHS was a vital part of Skagway's econony and
shared that the marine highway often provided the only
access into sone communities when the conditions prevented
air or road access. She discussed the services that the
ferries provided for coastal areas in Al aska. She noted
that the aviation highway system was receiving an increase
to its budget, but that AVHS was receiving budget cuts. She
wondered why the fiscal reductions were concentrated only
on AMHS and stated that reductions in the state
transportati on system should not be focused solely on AVHS
She urged for the restoration of funding for AMHS.

1:49: 13 PM

BILL THOVAS, SELF, HAINES (via teleconference), testified
in support of increased funding for the Southeast Regiona

Fish and Gane Budget, in particular for the "sockeye
managenent” funding. He also spoke in support of the
Parents as Teachers program He expressed appreciation for
the restoration of "sockeye managenent” funding to replace
federal noney, but opined that the funding should be
increased. He related that the nobney was critical for
sockeye managenent throughout Sout heast Al aska and was very
inmportant for all the user groups. He did not support the
removal of the extraterritorial jurisdiction funding. He
di scussed a challenge by the Federal Subsistence Board and
related that the state needed to protect its nmanagenent
rights in Southeast Alaska. He observed that the sockeye
managenent funding was for DNA testing. He noted the
inclusion of aerial survey funding and opined that it
should not be included to the detrinent of sockeye funding;

he suggested prioritizing the sockeye funding in Departnment
of Fish and Gane's budget over conducting aerial surveys.

He offered that the Chilkat and Chil koot Ri ver systens were
Sout heast Al aska's only two mmjor salnon streans that the
state had full ownership of. He pointed out that sal non was
a renewabl e resource that should be managed on science and
not politics. He opined that intent |anguage should be
added to prevent the Departnment of Fish and Gane from
nmovi ng or renoving research or nmanagenent noney to backfill

needs el sewhere in the budget. He pointed out that airbases

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 24 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



and arny bases in Anchorage and Fairbanks, as well rural
villages |ike Hoonah, were dependent on Parents as Teachers
prograns. He urged support for the Parents as Teachers
program

1: 54:17 PM

Co-Chair Kelly CLOSED public testinony. He comented on the
i npressive turnout for the public testinony, as well as the
courtesy and decorum that was denonstrated throughout the
nmeeti ng.

CS HB 65 (FIN was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

CS HB 66 (FIN was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
1:54: 57 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 1:55 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 25 03/23/13 10: 05 A M



